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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FMS. HRC)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ngs
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. WLK 79-69- PM
PETI TI ONER A.C. No. 06-00018-05001
V. Docket No. WLK 79-70-PM

A.C. No. 06-00018-05002
OTTAVA SI LI CA COVPANY,
RESPONDENT Lantern HIl Mne and M1 |

DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Stephen P. Kranmer, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, U S
Departnment of Labor, for Petitioner
Ri chard E. Bl odgett, D vision Manager, Qtawa Silica Conpany,
Ledyard, Connecticut, for Respondent

Before: Administrative Law Judge M chel s

These proceedi ngs were brought pursuant to section 110(a) of
the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U S.C. 0O
820(a). The petitions for assessnent of civil penalty were filed
by MSHA in both dockets (WLK 79-69-PM WLK 79-70-PM on January
18, 1979, and timely answers were filed by Respondent. The cases
were heard on both docket nunbers in M ddl etown, Connecticut, on
Cct ober 18, 1979, at which both parties were represented.

Docket No. WLK 79-69-PMinvol ved 20 al | eged vi ol ati ons.
Docket No. WLK 79-70-PMinvolved two all eged viol ations.
Evi dence was received as to each citation and a deci sion was
rendered fromthe bench. These decisions as they appear in the
record, with certain necessary corrections or changes, are set
forth bel ow

Prelimnarily, the Petitioner noved to withdraw its petition
with regard to Gitation No. 212903 (Docket No. WLK 79-69)
because the citation was vacated. The notion was granted and the
petition was wi thdrawn. Petitioner then noved to anmend Citation
Nos. 212894, 212895, 212904, 212906, and 212908 to read 56.12-30
i nstead of 56.12-2. The Respondent noved to dism ss those
citations. The Petitioner's notion was denied and it noved to
withdraw its petitions with respect to those five violations.
The nmotion to withdraw the petition was granted and as to those
citations the petition was dism ssed with prejudice.
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Docket No. WLK 79-69- PM

Ctation Nos. 212896, 212898, 212899, 212900, 212907, 212909,
and 212911, issued July 11, 1978

The following is the bench decision on these citations found
at pages 54-60; 79-82; 91-93; 102-104; 112-113; 123-124; and
139-142 of the transcript:

Citation No. 212896
This concerns Citation No. 212896.

The inspector charged as the condition or practice:
"Mandat ory standard 56.12-32 was not bei ng conplied
with in that the electrical cover plates were not
repl aced in storage building by shop.”" The standard
cited reads: "lInspection for cover plates on

el ectrical equipnment and junction boxes shall be kept
in place at all tines except during testing or
repairs.”

The first question is whether or not there has been a
violation. | believe that the facts in this are
practically undi sputed. The evidence and the testinony
shows that there was a cover plate nissing on a
particul ar junction box, as charged. Accordingly, |
find a violation of mandatory standard 56.12- 32

* Kk %

First, as to the history of violations, a docunent has
been received, P-36, which shows that for the Lantern
HIll Mne and MIIl, the Otawa Silica Conpany was
assessed on a total of 24 citations in 1978. | wll
find that this is no appreciable history of past
violations. | also note, in connection with this case
* * * that 1978 was the first year that the | aw
becanme applicable to this operation

The next criterion is the appropriateness of the
penalty to the size of the operator. The evidence
shows that in this operation there were 27 people or

m ners engaged in the work, and 65,000 tons of material
wer e produced annual ly.

Counsel for MSHA has indicated that this was a
medi um si zed conpany. He has presented no particul ar
evi dence by which | can nmeasure the difference between
conpani es, but in the circunstances, | wll find, at

| east for the purpose of these violations, that this is
a small-to-nmedium size, and may well be a medi um sized

conpany.

No evi dence was adduced that the penalties to be
assessed here, or this penalty, will affect the
operator's ability to continue in business.
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It was further stipulated that the operator abated this, as well
as all the citations which will be considered in these dockets,
rapidly and in good faith, and | so find.

The fifth criterion would be with regard to gravity.
Normal Iy, the fact a cover is off froman electrica
appl i ance or encl osure would be considered a serious
violation. | will take into account the fact that the
evi dence shows that this receptacle or container was
out of the practical reach of a miner standing on the
floor. O course, it is always possible for soneone,
under sone circunstances, to stand on a chair or other
object and to reach it. In the circunstances, however,
I would find that it is slightly serious.

The final criterion is negligence. |In this case the
evi dence shows that prior inspections under the
predecessor Act did not reveal the existence of this
| ack of a cover. The testinony further shows that it
is in an out-of-the-way spot that would be easily
over|l ooked. Furthernore, the inspector, while he did
testify that the operator should have known, is, |
believe, a little unclear in this regard. And his
observations, made in his report, may even show the

i nconsi stency. Accordingly, and in these

ci rcunst ances, especially since this was the first

i nspecti on made under the new Act, | would find a smal
degree of negligence.

The assessnent is as follows: Taking into account the
good faith and rapid conpliance shown by the operator
the fact that this was the first inspection under the
Act then recently nade applicable to the operator, and
the further facts that there were, as | have found,
only a small degree of gravity as well as negligence,
wi Il assess only a nominal penalty in this instance,
which will be $10.

That conpletes nmy decision on this citation
(Tr. 54-60).

Citation No. 212898

This is the decision on Gtation No. 212898.

And if | didn't say so in the beginning, | should state
here and now that all of these citations are in WLK
79-69- PM

The inspector charged as follows: "Mandatory standard
56.12-32 was not being conplied with in that the cover
plates on the electrical equipnment were not replaced in
electric notor storage area." This charges the

vi ol ati on of the same mandatory standard as the
previous citation, and | will not repeat the standard.
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Again, there is no dispute about the fact of the violation. The
i nspector has charged the | ack of cover plates, and it was his
testinmony that there were two junction boxes involved. The
evi dence suggests that in the area there were three junction
boxes, and there is no dispute that none of these had cover
plates on them And, noreover, there is no dispute about the
testinmony that there was no testing taking place at the tine.

And in light of these circunstances, and wi thout
repeating ny previous remarks, but which are al so
applicable here, I find that in this citation there is
a violation, as charged, of 30 CFR 56.12-32.

It is unnecessary to repeat ny findings as to the
criteria that are generally applicable. | need find,
in addition here, only specifically as to gravity and
as to negligence.

So far as the gravity is concerned, it appears to ne
that the seriousness is somewhat greater, in that, as
poi nted out by counsel, three junction boxes were
involved. It is also shown that sonme of these junction
boxes are out on the outside of the wall of the shed,
and were accessible to a mner, which, in ny view
would make it a nore serious violation

Furthernore, at sone point consideration should be
given to the fact that there were relatively |arge
nunbers of simlar conditions which have been charged
in this proceeding. | could not take that into account
in the first citation because there was no evi dence as
to other violations at that point. However, at this
time it is beginning to show nore of a picture of a
failure to replace or to install cover plates on these
junction boxes. | will take that into account. | will
find, as to this citation, that it was serious.

So far as negligence is concerned, ny conmments about
the fact that the showing is now of a failure in a
nunber of instances to have the cover plates installed,
and thus I think would show sonewhat nore negligence
that it was possible for me to find on the previous
citation. Nevertheless, and in spite of all that,

will continue to take into account the fact that the
operator did show rapid good faith in conpliance, and
furthernmore, and which | think is inportant, that this
was the first occasion in which the mne was inspected
under the Act recently nade applicable. | think that
is inmportant as a mitigating circunstance because, in

t hese circunstances, the mne and the operator is being
for the first tine advised precisely and concretely as
to what the requirenents are
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Now, that's not a conplete defense, because the |aw doesn't all ow
such a defense, but it is a mtigating circunmstance, in nmy view.

Taking all those factors into account, | wll assess
the penalty of $25 for this violation

That conpletes nmy decision on this citation. (Tr.
79-82).

Citation No. 212899
This is Ctation No. 212899.

The inspector found as the condition or practice as
follows: "Mandatory standard 56.12-32 was not being
conplied with in that an el ectrical cover plate was not
repl aced in upper storage shed.”

The mandatory standard cited is the same as that
previously quoted in the record, and I won't repeat
t hat .

The evi dence presented shows that there was a violation
of this mandatory standard in that in the upper storage
shed an electric cover plate was either not replaced or
m ssi ng. The operator does not dispute the evidence.
Accordingly, I find that on this citation there was a
violation of 30 CFR 56.12-32.

I need make findings on only two of the criteria which
are gravity and negligence, since the findings on the
other criteria are applicable to this citation al so.

Gravity. In this instance, since the testinony shows
that the particular junction box was not readily
accessi ble, in fact alnost inaccessible, | find that

there is a slight degree of gravity or seriousness.

So far as negligence is concerned, the box was | ocated
inarelatively renote |ocation. For that reason
ordinarily this would not be, in ny view, a high degree

of negligence. However, | do have to take into account
that there is a pattern shown in this record of a
nunber of such boxes. | agree with counsel that a

t hor ough i nspecti on shoul d have reveal ed t hese
vi ol ati ons or these conditions.

Nevertheless, | still continue to take into account the
fact that the operator did conply in good faith
rapidly, and also the fact that this was an initial

i nspection under a nemy applicable Act. It is true,

of course, that the | aw was previously applicabl e under
the old "Metal /Nonnetal " Act,
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but it did not carry the penalty. For such reason, | believe
that the enforcenent procedures nmay have been sonewhat different,
and that is the reason for ny viewthat, in a sense, the operator
was newl y brought under an Act for which MSHA had adopted new
procedures for enforcenent.

Under all these circunstances, | would find ordinary
negl i gence.

The penalty | will assess is, in this instance, $20
That conpletes nmy decision on this citation. (Tr.
91-93).

Ctation No. 212900
This is ny decision on Gtation No. 212900.

The inspector charged as the condition or practice he
saw. "Mandatory standard 56.12-32 was not being
conplied with in that the cover plate was not repl aced
on electrical equipnment over Flour Bagger." | have
previously quoted the standard referred to and | will
not repeat that.

As to the fact of the violation, the only evidence
recei ved shows that the cover plate was not in place,
as all eged, on the box over the Flour Bagger.
Accordingly, I find that there was a violation of 30
CFR 56.12-32. The prior findings on the points
appl i cabl e have al ready been nmade and they woul d not be
repeated here. They are applicable to this citation
As has been pointed out, this violation is very sinmlar
to the previous citation, and I will decide it on the
same basis, and I will not repeat all of the coments
that | have made there.

I think this should be noted, however. | agree with
counsel to an extent that as we proceed, a picture of a
| arge nunber of violations seenms to be energing.
However, | think it should be noted that these
violations, so far as | can see, are all found on the
same date. |If the conditions were such that they were
found over a period of time, | think it would be much
nore significant. | agree, however, that there is sone
significance in the | arge nunber, but not to the extent
it would be had this been a continuous series of

vi ol ati ons over a period of tinme.

Accordingly, as to gravity, | find a slight
seriousness, and as to negligence, ordinary negligence.
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Taking into account all the facts that | have previously
mentioned, | hereby assess the sane penalty as | did for the
previous citation, namely, $20.
(Tr. 102-104).

Citation No. 212907
This decision is on Ctation No. 212907.

The condition or practice cited by the inspector was as
follows: "Mandatory standard 56.12-32 was not being
complied with in that the cover plates were not

repl aced on electrical equipnent in dryer control

room" The standard cited has been previously quoted.

The evi dence shows, and there has been no evidence to
the contrary, that the cover plate was m ssing as
charged. Accordingly, I find a violation of 30 CFR
56. 12- 32.

As noted by counsel for MSHA, this violation is nore
serious than the others in that the electrical junction
boxes were accessible, and there was nore than one
involved. | find, in the circunstances, it was a
serious violation. For reasons previously stated,

find, in this instance, ordinary negligence. However,

| do take into account in the assessnent those factors
previously nmentioned as to other citations where
appl i cabl e.

In all the circunstances, | find and assess a penalty
for this violation of $35.
(Tr. 112-113).

Citation No. 212909
This is Ctation No. 212909.

The inspector charged as the condition or practice as
foll ows: "Mandatory standard 56.12-32 was not being
complied with in that the cover plates were not

repl aced on electrical equipnent at dryer." | have
al ready quoted the standard referred to and will not
repeat it here.

The evi dence shows, and there has been no evidence to
the contrary, that there was a violation as charged in
this citation, nanely, that a cover plate was not in
pl ace on the electrical equipnment at the dryer.
Accordingly, |I find, as to this citation, a violation
of 30 CFR 56.12-32, as charged.

A finding as to the generally applicable criteria are
i ncorporated with reference to this citation
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(Tr.

On "gravity,"” it appears that this may not have been quite as
serious a violation, due to the fact that the electrical box was
relatively inaccessible. | will take that into account.
Nevertheless, | find this to be a relatively serious violation

I include in this finding, however, ny remarks previously nade as
to the gravity of these junction box violations.

On "negligence,” | also include ny prior remarks. In
general, it is the kind of violation which the operator
knew or shoul d have known about, and | find ordinary
negl i gence.

Taki ng i nto account the various considerations

mentioned, | hereby assess the penalty for this
viol ation of $25.
123-124).

Citation No. 212911

This is the decision on Gtation No. 212911

The inspector charged as the condition or practice as
follows: "Mandatory standard 56.12-2 was not bei ng
conplied with in that the electrical cover plates were
not replaced on electrical equipment in hawk shed." It
shoul d be noted here that the inspector testified that
citation 56.12-2 was an error. The nunber "3" was
omtted, and it should read, "56.12-32."

This standard has al ready been quoted and will not be
repeat ed here.

The first question is whether or not there was a

violation of the standard. | accept the evidence,
there being nothing to the contrary, that this was an
i nactivated or deenergized circuit. It had no

electricity init, and, therefore, could not have
harmed any miner. The issue, obviously, is the fact of
viol ati on, however, and whether that takes it outside
of the standard. Counsel for MSHA contends that even
though the circuit is inactive, the standard conti nues
to apply, and M. Blodgett's safety director for the
operator contends that it should not apply in such

Ci rcumst ances.

It seens to ne that the clear wording of the standard

woul d make it applicable to a deactivated circuit. |If
the circuit is abandoned, as | understand it, it should
be renoved, otherw se the standard does apply. | can

appreci ate that that nmay appear to be a strict
interpretation--perhaps it mght even be described as
technical. However, | would note that we are here
dealing with a nunber of
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i nstances in which electrical boxes have been renoved and not
repl aced. There is, therefore, considerable reason to believe
that had this circuit been reactivated, it woul d have been
wi t hout the cover box. Thus, it is not as technical as it may
seem

| do find, therefore, under those circunstances, that
that standard is applicable, even to a circuit that is
tenmporarily out of use. The evidence is, and there is
no di spute, that the cover plate or cover plates were
mssing. And | find that to be a violation as charged
of 30 CFR 56. 12-32.

I need not repeat here ny finding on all those criteria
generally applicable. | will nention only those having
to do with gravity and having to do with negligence.

As to gravity, it is clear, as | found, that the
circuit was inactive, that there was no hazard.
Accordingly, I find this to be nonserious.

As to negligence, |I find that, in general, it was

ei ther known or shoul d have been known that this cover
was m ssing. However, | incorporate ny previous
findings, which include certain nmtigating factors as
far as negligence is concerned.

In Iight of all those circunstances, | don't believe
that the full penalty requested by the Assessnent
O fice or that requested by counsel is nmerited. The
fact that there was no likelihood of injury is a direct
factor in this instance, and I will fine the nom na
penalty of $10 for this violation

(Tr. 139-142).

The above bench decision with reference to citations 212896,
212898, 212899, 212900, 212907, 212909 and 212911 is hereby
AFFI RVED

Citation Nos. 212897 and 212912, issued July 11, 1978

The following is the bench decision on these citations found
at pages 183-189 of the transcript.

The citations here being considered are Nos. 212897 and
212912.

In the first such citation, the inspector charged:
"Mandat ory standard 56.4-11 was not being complied with
in that the abandoned electrical wiring in the oi
storage shed was not renoved.” He charged a violation
of mandatory standard 56.4-11
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In Citation No. 212912, the inspector charged: "Mandatory
standard 56.4-11 was not being conplied with in that the
abandoned el ectrical wiring was not renoved fromthe hawk shed."

The standard so referred to reads as foll ows:
"Abandoned el ectrical circuits shall be de-energized
and isolated so that they cannot becone energized

i nadvertently."

The inspector, as to both of these citations, testified
in effect, at least to his view, that these were
abandoned el ectrical circuits. Furthernore, there
appears to be no dispute that the circuits in question
in both of the citations were deenergi zed.

The inspector further testified that in his view, the
circuits should have been conpletely renmoved to be
considered as isolated. There is testinony, and | don't
believe it is disputed, that in both instances there
was a separation between what you might call the

i ncom ng energized wires and the circuits that are in
guestion. In one instance it is not clear whether
energy was comng into that particular building or not.
And in the other instance--that is, 897--it is clear
that there were live wires in the buil ding.

In the case of Citation No. 212912--that is the circuit
in the hawk shed--the evidence is that it was,
subsequent to this citation, activated and put in
service. The initial question, therefore, is whether
in that instance, that was an abandoned circuit. It is
evident, | think, that whether or not a circuit is
abandoned woul d have to be judged on the circunstances
of a case involving, | suppose, circunstances |ike the
length of time it had been not used and ot her

ci rcunst ances which would indicate the Iikelihood it
woul d ever be used. W have few, if any, such

ci rcunst ances as shown here except the tine it had

[ been out of use which was], as | understand it, or at

| east counsel argued--for sonething |ike 6 months. The
fact of the matter is that it was not ultimtely
abandoned, because it was restored to use.

It would be nmy conclusion as to that citation that
there is just not a sufficient preponderance of the
evi dence to show the abandonnent at the tinme the
citation was made. 1In fact, | would think that the
evi dence would tend to showto the contrary, that it
was not abandoned.

Accordingly, as to Citation No. 212912, | find there
was no violation, and that citation should be vacated,
and the petition disnmissed as to that citation
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Citation No. 212897 is in a different category. There is no
evidence that it was restored to use. | don't recall there being
any real dispute that this, in fact, was an abandoned circuit,
and I will so find.

It was deenergi zed. The sole question is then, whether
in these kind of circunstances, with the separations

i nvol ved, and considering that it had not been renoved,
was it, in fact, isolated?

| suppose | would have to agree with counsel for NMSHA
that the circunstances would surely vary as to whet her
or not a particul ar abandoned circuit was, in fact,
isolated or not isolated. The situation that he
mentioned of wires actually crossing each other would
not strike one as isolation, even though they m ght be
separated by some insulation. |In this case, there was
a much greater gap. The live circuit was separated
fromthe deenergi zed and abandoned circuit by about a
foot or foot and a half of space. Now, the energized
circuit was in a conduit, and as | understood the
testimony, which was not disputed, covered by sone sort
of a plate.

Prelimnarily, I would find--and this is subject to
reconsideration if cases are found to the contrary--but
| would find that the isolation required is not
necessarily renoval. | would concede that in perhaps
some cases renoval would be the only way to conpl ete
the isolation. But the question is whether that was
required in this instance. | further note that the
standard, itself, does not absolutely require renoval
nor should it.

It seenms to ne that the operator in this instance had,
at least in a certain sense, isolated--that is,
separated--quite clearly the energized fromthe
abandoned circuit. The question is, had it been

i solated sufficiently to satisfy this particular
standard? | don't think the showi ng here is adequate
to show, by a preponderance of the evidence, that it
had not been so isolated sufficiently. |In other words,
the two circuits were clearly separated. It would, in
all probability, take an electrician to rewire--and the
evi dence supports that--the particular circuitry.

The circuitry in this instance was, according to the
testinmony--not hidden or concealed. It is difficult
for me to understand how, at |east in the kind of

ci rcunst ances, MSHA coul d reasonably justify that this
could be inadvertently energized. M ultimte or
general conclusion would be that if MSHA would require
a greater isolation than was enployed in this instance,
that the regul ati ons woul d have to be made cl earer
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Accordingly, in light of that, I find also that Citation No.
212897 was not proved, and | therefore vacate that citation and
di smss the petition as to it.

As | stated, however, | nmake that decision subject to a
reconsideration if there is a body of law holding to
the effect that, in general, isolation neans a conplete
renoval .

If | amasked to reconsider this, it should be brought
to ny attention as quickly as possible, and before the
transcript is finished and received.
That conpl etes ny deci sion on these two citations.
The above bench decision is hereby AFFI RVED
Citation No. 212901, issued July 11, 1978

The following is the bench decision on the above citation
found at pages 199-201 of the transcript.

This is Gtation No. 212901
The inspector found the condition or practice as

follows: "Mandatory standard 56.9-11 was not being
conplied with in that the P & H crane had cracked

wi ndows." And the mandatory standard cited reads as
follows: "Cab wi ndows shall be of safety glass or
equi val ent, in good condition, and shall be kept
clean.”

The evi dence received, which has not been disputed,
shows that the window in the crane was shattered.

That, therefore, is a violation of this standard, and
so find. In other words, | find a violation of 30 CFR
56.9-11.

The finding as to the general criteria has already been
made.

| have limted this to findings on criteria and
gravity, and what degree. First, the gravity.

The inspector testified that this could affect a m ner
or the operator of the machine in two ways. He could
be cut frombroken glass. Also, it could affect his
visibility. It seens to nme that in the circunstances,
and based on the testinony, this is a serious
violation. On "negligence,” the inspector testified
that, in his view, the operator should have been aware
of the condition. This is somewhat inconsistent with
his statenment nmade on his report at the
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time of the citing of the citation, in which he stated that it
could not have been known or predicted. The inspector, as
previously noted, has explained this or attenpted to explain this
di fference or inconsistency.

It seens to ne that, in general, the fact of the
shattered glass is readily noticeable, and should be
observed or nade known by soneone. In this instance,
the inspector did not know how |l ong the gl ass had been
shattered. There is the possibility that this may have
happened just before it was observed and had not been
reported, although there is no evidence to that effect.

But considering all the circunstances, and al so taking
into account the good faith and rapid abatenent, it
woul d be nmy belief that the sum assessed by the
Assessnment O fice would be appropriate, and | hereby
assess a fine of that anount, nanmely, $26.

That ends ny decision on this citation

The above bench decision is hereby AFFI RVED
Citation No. 212902, issued July 11, 1978

The following is the bench decision on the above citation
found at pages 245-249 of the transcript.

This concerns Citation No. 212902, wherein the

i nspector testified that he found a condition or
practice as follows: "Mandatory standard 56. 12-68 was
not being conplied with in that the transforner

encl osure was not | ocked."

The standard so referred to reads as foll ows:
"Transforner enclosure shall be kept |ocked agai nst
unaut hori zed entry."

The first consideration is whether or not a violation
occurred. The testinmony received indicates that there
was a |l arge overall enclosure, and as | understand it,
it was separated into two parts by a fence. On one
side, which is owned and operated and maintai ned by the
power utility conmpany, there was what m ght be
described as a transforner. | don't think that it is
really disputed. On the other side, which is operated
and mai ntai ned by the conpany, there is other

equi prent, and this has been generally described as a
cutoff switch. The inspector did not go into the
enclosure. He did not feel it was safe to do so and so
he did not testify as to what precise equi prent was on
either side. That information cones fromthe testinony
of M. Partridge, a witness for the operator
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The testinony further shows, and there is no dispute, that the
utility side of the enclosure was | ocked, and on the conpany side
of this fence or outside enclosure, the |ock was not secured. 1In
other words, it was open to entry. However, the equipnent within
t hat company side, according to the testinony, was in a | ocked
cont ai ner or separate enclosure.

| suppose the issue becones perhaps somewhat technica
at this point. | think that the argunment of the
representative of the operator here is ingenious, in a
way, although | would say that | could not accept that,
in my view This general enclosure was a transformer
enclosure within the nmeaning of this Act. It is true
that there was this separation, but | don't believe,
and | so find, that that keeps it from being an

encl osure as defined in or within the neaning of the
regul ati on.

There is sone testinony that there woul d be no danger
in going into that enclosure on the conpany side.
However, that testinmony cane from M. Partridge, who is
not an electrician. | have to believe that that entire
apparatus was encl osed for a purpose, and that was to
keep people out from possi ble danger, and of course, in
addition to that, to the general security of the area.

I think it is an integrated whole. | don't see how you
could separate the elenents of this whole in this kind
of a situation. There has to be some connecting |ink

I don't think the evidence is clear as to what the
dangers mght or m ght not be on that connecting |ink
shoul d there be an unauthorized entry. But even so, as
counsel for MSHA has stated, the general danger around
such an installation is so great that it would seemto
me that it would be flirting with possible injury to
construe this regulation so narromy that it would not
cover such an enclosure as a transformer enclosure.

In other words, to be nmore specific, | would interpret
it as the transforner and all appurtenances thereto, as
covered by this regulation. Since it was not | ocked,

it did violate the standard, and | so find.

| find here that the failure to keep this enclosure

| ocked violates 30 CFR 56. 12-68.

There are only two criteria | have to make findings on
t he ot hers having al ready been made heretofore. The
first is the gravity. | believe it is very serious,
and | so find, because of the danger of electrocution
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So far as negligence is concerned, it is a condition which
bel i eve the operator knew or should have known in such
encl osures. There would seemto ne to be very few excuses for it
remai ni ng unl ocked. Accordingly, | find that this was nore than
ordi nary negligence on the part of the operator

I should add, as far as the negligence is concerned,
there was no evidence put in as to why this particular
encl osure remai ned unl ocked, or any information which
mght tend to mitigate the negligence

In all those circunstances, | would not assess as high
a penalty as the Government counsel has asked. | again
consi der the operator's good faith and rapid abat enent
inthis matter. | will assess a penalty of $100 for
this violation.

The above bench decision is hereby AFFI RVED

Citation Nos. 212905, 212910, issued July 11, 1978, and G tation
No. 212913, issued July 13, 1978

Citation No. 212905 alleged a violation of 30 CFR 56.12-2
which states that electrical equipnent and circuits shall be
provided with switches or other controls. Such sw tches or
controls shall be of approved design and construction and shal
be properly installed. The parties agreed to settle this case for
the amobunt originally assessed, $24. | hereby approve the
settl enent.

Citation No. 212910 alleged a violation of 30 CFR 56.11-2
whi ch states that crossovers, elevated wal kways, el evated ranps
and stairways shall be of substantial construction provided with
handrail s and mai ntained in good condition. Were necessary,

t oeboards shall be provided. The parties agreed to settle this
case for $24, the anmount originally assessed. | hereby approve
the settlenent.

Citation No. 212913 alleged a violation of 30 CFR 56. 4-23
which states that firefighting equipnent which is provided on the
m ne property shall be strategically | ocated, readily accessible,
pl ai nly marked, properly maintained, and inspected periodically.
Records shall be kept of such inspections. The parties agreed to
settle this case for $26, the ambunt originally assessed. |
hereby approve the settl enent.

| hereby REAFFIRM ny approval fromthe bench of these
settl ements.

Docket No. WLK 79-70-PM
Citation No. 212914, issued July 13, 1978

The following is the bench decision on this citation found
at pages 264-266 of the transcript.
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This is Ctation No. 212914.

The inspector cited, as the condition or practice, the
followi ng: "Mandatory standard 56. 14-1 was not bei ng
complied with in that the guard for the flour screw
V-belt drive was not guarded conpletely."

The inspector cited 56.14-1, which reads as foll ows:
"Cears, sprockets, chains, drive, head, tail and
take-up pulleys, fly wheels, couplings, shafts, saw

bl ades, fan inlets, and sim|ar exposed novi ng machi ne
parts which may be contacted by persons and which may
cause injury to persons shall be guarded.™

As | previously indicated, the only evidence received
is the testinony of the inspector, as well as the
docunents and that indicates that a part of the V-belt
on this flour screw drive--V-belt drive--that is the
nmotor end of the drive, was not guarded. Cearly, it
seens to ne the standard covers that. There was an
exposure of noving parts, which, if contacted by
persons, could cause injury.

Accordingly, | find there was a viol ation of mandatory
standard 30 CFR 56. 14-1, as charged.

These are consolidated dockets. | have already nade
the findings as to all of the statutory criteria except
for gravity and for negligence.

On gravity, | agree with counsel for MSHA that this is
a serious type of violation, and | so find, that it is
serious, because an operator or any mner or person
near the machi ne may becone entangl ed, either through
his clothing or his person, and becone injured
seriously. The inspector testified that the operator
shoul d have been aware of the violation, because a
conpl ete inspection had been nmade previously. | do
note the comments and contentions of M. Blodgett, that
the operator did have sone question under sone

ci rcunmst ances about the parts of the machines to be
covered. And he does--and he al so enphasi zed t he fact
that this V-belt was partly covered. However, on the
basi s of the evidence that has been received in this
record, it seens clear to nme that it shoul d have been
covered, and | find no anbiguity, really, in--or any
guestion, really, about whether or not that end shoul d
have been covered. And under the circunstances, the
operator should have known about it, and I find,

t herefore, ordinary negligence.
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| take into account those factors of mitigation applicable that I
previously mentioned. | believe that the penalty assessed by the
assessnent officer, which was $38, is appropriate for this
violation, and I will make the same assessnent.

That conpl etes the decision on this citation
The above bench decision is hereby AFFI RVED
Citation No. 212915, issued July 13, 1978

The following is the bench decision on the above citation
found at pages 320-323 of the transcript.

This is Gtation No. 212915. The inspector cited as
the condition or practice the follow ng: "Mandatory
standard 56.5-3 was not being conplied with in that the
| oose material on the quarry face was not scal ed after
bl ast."

I have to make a correction on that. As | read the

i nspector's condition or practice statenent, it starts,
"Mandat ory standard 56.5-5." The inspector has
testified that that is not a 5 and should read
"56.3-5."

Now, then, that particular standard reads: "Men shal
not work near or under dangerous banks. Overhanging
banks shall be taken down i medi ately and ot her unsafe
ground conditions shall be corrected pronmptly, or the
area shall be barricaded and posted." That's the end of
t he quot ati on.

The first question is the fact of the violation. The
evi dence that has been received on this was described
by M. Kraner as somewhat confusing, and | wll agree
with that. | think it is confusing, and in sone
respects contradictory and difficult to foll ow.
However, it seens to nme that there is no doubt that on
this quarry face there was, at some point, |oose
material, and that was recogni zed by the operator. The
evi dence shows, by the testinmony, as well as in
docunentary form that a backhoe on the 12th did do
some scaling work. The inspector also testified that
he did see a backhoe on the 12th.

Furthernore, as | understand the inspector, there was a
backhoe on the 13th, when he wote his citation. The
citation was witten on the 13th at 9:30, and it was
abated on the 13th at 1500 hours, which would nean 3

o' clock. In order for that to be done, it was
necessary to have heavy equi pment on the face. | have
to deduce fromthe circunstances or inply fromthe

ci rcunmst ances that the equi pmrent had al ready been
ordered and was there. 1In fact, the inspector did
testify that when he observed the condition, the



operator was in the process of correcting the
condi ti on.
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| should note, or I should have noted previously, that there is
no question concerning the part of the standard whi ch woul d
require, in the alternative, that areas shall be barricaded and
posted. The inspector nade clear that was not applicable,
because no one could get near, in the circunstances, and this
apparently woul d have been an unnecessary action

The only issue, therefore, is whether the correction
was pronptly done.

The only questions at all that | can see, in

consi dering the question of pronptness, was the fact
that some day or so had el apsed, which is the point
made by counsel for the CGovernment. 1In the
circunstances, it does not seemto ne that that little
time span is that significant. The testinony and the
evi dence, in general, strikes ne as indicating that the
operator was doing all that it could reasonably be
expected to, in the circunstances, and was in the
process of correcting this |loose material on the quarry

face.

In I'ight of those circunstances, | conclude that the
Petitioner has not carried its burden in this
particul ar i nstance, and, accordingly, | would vacate
this citation and dismss the petition as to Gtation
No. 212915.

The above bench decision is hereby AFFI RVED

A summary of the dispositions in this case foll ows:

Citation No. Action Taken or Assessnent
212903 wi t hdr awn

212894 di smssed with prejudice
212895 di smssed with prejudice
212904 di smssed with prejudice
212906 di smssed with prejudice
212908 di smssed with prejudice
212896 $ 10

212898 $ 25

212899 $ 20

212900 $ 20

212907 $ 35

212909 $ 25

212911 $ 10

212897 vacat ed

212912 vacat ed

212901 $ 26

212902 $100

212905 $ 24
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212910 $ 24
212913 $ 26
212914 $ 38
212915 vacat ed
Tot al $383

ORDER

IT IS ORDERED that Respondent pay the penalties totaling $383
within thirty (30) days of the date of this decision.

Franklin P. Mchels
Admi ni strative Law Judge



